




 
 
 
 

August 21, 2015 
 
 
 
 
Dr. Merrill M. Grant, Superintendent 
Sierra County Office of Education 
109 Beckwith Rd. 
Loyalton, CA 96118 
mgrant@spjusd.org 
 
Dear Superintendent Grant: 
 
It is a great pleasure to inform you that the State Superintendent of Public Instruction 
has approved the Sierra County Office of Education’s Local Control and Accountability 
Plan (LCAP) for the 2015–16 school year, pursuant to Education Code (EC) Section 
52070.5(d).   
 
As you know, the Superintendent is required to review and approve the LCAP or the 
annual update to an existing LCAP prior to the approval of the LEA’s adopted budget 
per EC Section 1622(b)(1)(C). You will receive an additional notification when the 
corresponding budget is approved. 
 
On behalf of the Superintendent, we would like to thank you and your staff for your 
efforts towards continuing to increase student achievement and opportunities for every 
student to have a world-class education. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this subject, please contact me by phone at 916-
319-0303 or by e-mail at jbreshears@cde.ca.gov. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Jeff Breshears, Education Administrator 
Local Agency Systems Support Office 
 
JB:jb 
 
 



Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2015/16Balances through August

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - Gen Fund   

1100 190,198.00 190,198.00 193,504.70 4,790.14 8,096.84-Teachers Salaries

1120 2,100.00 2,100.00 2,100.00 Certificated Substitutes

1200 65,054.00 65,054.00 59,973.10 5,080.90 Certificated Pupil Support Ser

1300 77,905.00 77,905.00 64,140.80 12,828.15 936.05 Certificated Supervisor Admini

Total for Object 1000 335,257.00 335,257.00 317,618.60 17,618.29 20.11 

2100 79,742.00 79,742.00 68,085.17 1,257.27 10,399.56 Instructional Aides' Salaries

2120 700.00 700.00 700.00 Classified Substitutes

2200 10,530.00 10,530.00 9,873.05 824.00 167.05-Classified Support Salaries

2220 500.00 500.00 500.00 Classified Substitute Salaries

2300 101,353.00 101,353.00 83,862.00 16,832.40 658.60 Classified Supervisors' Admini

2400 130,378.00 130,378.00 110,861.31 19,948.00 431.31-Clerical Technical Office Staf

2900 9,915.00 9,915.00 9,915.00 Other Classified Salaries

Total for Object 2000 333,118.00 333,118.00 272,681.53 38,861.67 21,574.80 

3101 34,080.50 1,890.44 35,970.94-STRS Certificated Positions

3102 36,635.00 36,635.00 481.70 36,153.30 STRS Classified Positions

3202 54,763.00 54,763.00 44,019.40 7,167.26 3,576.34 PERS Classified Positions

3301 68.00 68.00 68.00 OASDI Certificated Positions

3302 19,466.00 19,466.00 16,016.80 2,356.68 1,092.52 OASDI Classified Positions

3311 4,681.00 4,681.00 4,465.10 238.92 23.02-Medicare Certificated Position

3312 4,667.00 4,667.00 3,811.10 552.03 303.87 Medicare Classified Positions

3401 88,592.00 88,592.00 77,686.20 2,652.76 8,253.04 Health & Welfare Benefits Cert

3402 73,935.00 73,935.00 63,920.60 11,072.04 1,057.64-Health & Welfare Benefits Clas

3501 234.00 234.00 158.80 8.82 66.38 SUI Certificated

3502 234.00 234.00 136.35 19.41 78.24 SUI Classified

3601 10,976.00 10,976.00 11,691.90 625.60 1,341.50-Workers' Compensation Certific

3602 10,939.00 10,939.00 9,978.82 1,445.48 485.30-Workers' Compensation Classifi

Total for Object 3000 305,190.00 305,190.00 266,447.27 28,029.44 10,713.29 

4300 13,306.00 13,306.00 6,034.77 49.14- 7,320.37 Materials and Supplies

4320 1,300.00 1,300.00 26.88 528.17 744.95 Custodial Grounds Supplies

4330 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Office Supplies

4350 5,500.00 5,500.00 2,250.00 3,250.00 Vehicle Upkeep

4400 8,459.00 8,459.00 8,459.00 Noncapitalized Equipment

Total for Object 4000 29,565.00 29,565.00 8,311.65 479.03 20,774.32 

5100 39,626.00 39,626.00 17,095.00 22,531.00 Subagreements for Services

5200 24,854.00 24,854.00 6,506.87 109.13 18,238.00 Travel and Conference

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2016, Period = 2, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 1 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Sep  2 2015  8:05AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1120
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2120
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2220
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3101
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3102
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3202
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3301
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3302
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3311
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3312
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3401
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3402
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3501
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3502
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3601
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3602
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4320
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4330
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4350
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5200


Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2015/16Balances through August

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - Gen Fund    (continued)

5300 17,870.00 17,870.00 1,865.00 8,522.00 7,483.00 Dues and Membership

5400 9,300.00 9,300.00 7,961.00 1,339.00 Insurance

5500 9,200.00 9,200.00 2,139.16 119.00- 7,179.84 Operation Housekeeping Service

5600 2,600.00 2,600.00 501.50 23.50 2,075.00 Rentals, Leases, Repairs, Nonc

5800 8,400.00 8,400.00 8,600.00 300.00- 100.00 Professional Consulting

5801 35,500.00 35,500.00 1,000.00 34,500.00 Legal Services

5803 500.00 500.00 500.00 Legal Publications

5805 593.00 593.00 270.00 323.00 Personnel Expense

5806 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Negotiations

5808 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .00 Other Services & Fees

5810 365,709.00 365,709.00 225,330.56 41,833.39 98,545.05 Contracted Services

5899 3,604.50 70.50 3,675.00-SPJUSD to Reimburse

5900 1,600.00 1,600.00 1,600.00 Communications

Total for Object 5000 518,252.00 518,252.00 268,412.59 58,100.52 191,738.89 

6200 30,032.00 30,032.00 30,032.00 Building and Improvement of Bu

6400 13,100.00 13,100.00 13,100.00 Equipment

Total for Object 6000 43,132.00 43,132.00 .00 .00 43,132.00 

7141 42,224.00 42,224.00 42,224.00 Tuition, excess cost etc betwe

7310 .00 Direct Support/Indirect Costs

Total for Object 7000 42,224.00 42,224.00 .00 .00 42,224.00 

330,177.41 1,606,738.00 1,606,738.00 1,133,471.64 143,088.95 Total for Fund 01 and Expense accounts

Fund 16 - FOREST RES   

7211 270,349.00 270,349.00 270,349.00 Transfers of Pass-through Rev

7619 47,709.00 47,709.00 47,709.00 Other Authorized Interfund Tra

318,058.00 318,058.00 318,058.00 .00 .00 Total for Fund 16, Expense accounts and Object 7000

648,235.41 1,924,796.00 1,924,796.00 1,133,471.64 143,088.95 Total for Org 001 - Sierra County Office of Education

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2016, Period = 2, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 2 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Sep  2 2015  8:05AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5500
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5600
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5800
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5801
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5803
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5805
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5806
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5808
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5810
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5899
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7141
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7310
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=16&p8=Fund&p7=7211
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=78930&p2=1&p3=16&p8=Fund&p7=7619


SCOE  
 Minutes 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEEETING OF THE  

SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

August 8, 2015 

Downieville School, 130 School Street, Downieville CA 95936 

5:30 pm for Closed Session 

 

A.  CALL TO ORDER 

 

 President ALLEN WRIGHT called the meeting to order at 6:09 pm. 

 

B.  ROLL CALL 

 

 PRESENT:  Mr.  Tim Driscoll, President 

    Ms. Sharon Dryden, Vice President  

     Ms. Patty Hall, Clerk 

    Mr.  Allen Wright, Member 

     Mr.  Mike Moore, Member 

 

 ABSENT:     None     

 

 VACANT:     None 

     

C. FLAG SALUTE 

 

D. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA   

 MOORE/HALL  

 

E. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 

  

1. Superintendent’s Report 

 

a. Agreement with National University/Educational Services and Scholarships 

b. Filing of Declaration of Need of Fully Qualified Educators for the 2015-2016 school 

year. A diligent search to recruit fully prepared teacher(s) was made and an insufficient number of certificated 

persons met the SCOE’s employment criteria for the position(s).  

c. Approval of the CBEST (California Basic Educational Skills Test) Waiver for 

Substitute Teachers. The Sierra County Board of Education and the Sierra County Superintendent declare 

that the Sierra County Office of Education (SCOE) has been unable to recruit enough day-to-day substitute 

teachers who have not had an opportunity to take and pass all sections of the California Basic Educational Skills 

Test (CBEST).  The SCOE anticipates employing five (5) day-to-day substitutes on variable term CBEST waivers 

for the 2015-2016 school year. 

d. Occupational Therapist –Leslie Marsden, Occupational Therapist, will renew her contract 

e. School Nurse Services –Janis Hardeman, Registered Nurse, will provide contracted 

nursing services for County Office of Education  

f. Loyalton Elementary Preschool – Increase in Instructional Aide hours, 5 hrs. weekly to 

assist Mrs. Lennie Garcia with the Transitional Kindergarten program.  

2. Business Report 

 

a. Board Report-Expenditures by Object 07/01/15 to 7/31/15 

b. 2015-16 Budget Calendar and 2016-17 Budget Development Calendar 



Sierra County Board of Education  

Regular Meeting Minutes 

August 11, 2015 

 

 

SCOE 

Minutes 

2 

3. Staff Reports (5 minutes) - None 

  

4. SPTA Report (5 minutes) - None 

 

5. Board Members’ Report (5 minutes)  

Mike Moore will be out for surgery and anticipates a full recovery by next board meeting.   

 
1. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

President WRIGHT opened the meeting for public comment at 6:15 pm.    

 There was no comment from the Downieville location. 

 Megan Meschery, Loyalton High School Teacher, gave an update on the Sierra Schools 

Foundation grant cycle and Summer 2015 news. The 2015 Gran Fondo bike race will be 

canceled. 

President WRIGHT closed the meeting for public comment at 6:21 pm. 

 
F. CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

1. Approval of minutes of the Regular Board meeting held July 14, 2015 

2. Approval of bill warrants for month of July 2015 

3.   Approval of Quarterly Report on Williams Uniform Complaints for quarter ending June 

30, 2015.  It is required per Education Code 35186 section (d) that a school district shall report 

summarized data on the nature and resolution of all complaints on a quarterly basis to the county 

superintendent of schools and the governing board of the school district.  No complaints regarding 

textbooks and instructional materials, teacher vacancy or misassignment or conditions of facilities were 

filed with Sierra County Office of Education during the quarter ending June 30, 2015.  No complaints 

regarding textbooks and instructional materials, teacher vacancy or misassignment or conditions of 

facilities were filed with Sierra County Office of Education during the 2014-2015 school year. 
WRIGHT/HALL 

5/0 

 

G. ACTION ITEMS 

 

1. New Business 

 

1516-01 Public Hearing to announce the adoption of the Declaration of Need for Fully 

Qualified Educators for the 2015-2016 school year was opened at 6:19 pm  and 

closed without comment. 

 

1516-02 Adoption of Resolution No. 15-002, Superintendent Salary for Option A 

MOORE/WRIGHT 

 

 ROLL CALL VOTE 

 DRISCOLL AYE 

 HALL  AYE 

 MOORE  AYE 

 WRIGHT  AYE 

DRYDEN  NO 



Sierra County Board of Education  

Regular Meeting Minutes 

August 11, 2015 

 

 

SCOE 

Minutes 

3 

 

BOARD POLICIES AND ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS  

 

1516-03 Approval of Administrative Regulation 4161.2, 4261.2, 4361.2, Personal Leaves 

MOORE/HALL 

5/0 

 

1516-04 Approval of Board Bylaw 9320, Meetings and Notices 

 MOORE/HALL 

5/0 

 

H. ADVANCED PLANNING 

 

 1.   Next Regular Board Meeting will be held on September 8, 2015, at Sierra County 

Office of Education, 109 Beckwith Rd., Room 4, Loyalton, CA 96118, beginning with 

Closed Session, as needed, at 5 pm and the Regular Board Meeting at 6:00 pm 
 

 

I. ADJOURN 

HALL/WRIGHT 

5/0 

 

The meeting adjourned at 6:26 pm. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 __________________________   _______________________________  

 Patty Hall, Clerk     Dr. Merrill M. Grant, Superintendent 

        Secretary of the Board of Education 

 

 

 



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 08/01/2015 through 08/31/2015

Check 

Amount
Pay to the Order of

Check 

Number
Check Date Expensed AmountFund-Object Comment

00014214 08/04/2015 APEX SAW WORKS 01-9500 SHOP SUPPLIES 150.79 

00014215 08/04/2015 CCSESA 01-5300 AESA MEMBERSHIP 260.00 

BASC STEERING COMMITTEE 900.00 

CCSESA DUES 7,062.00 

TTSC MEMBERSHIP DUES 200.00 8,422.00 

00014216 08/04/2015 CCSESA TREASURER              c/o SCHOOL SERVICES 

OF CA

01-5300 EMCN COALITION 100.00 

00014217 08/04/2015 CENTRAL SANITARY SUPPLY 01-4320 CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES 442.17 

00014218 08/04/2015 AMY FILIPPINI 01-5200 PER DIEM/REIMBURSEMENT 66.00 

00014219 08/04/2015 INLAND SUPPLY 01-4320 CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES 86.00 

00014220 08/04/2015 LIBERTY UTILITIES CPEC 01-5500 ELECTRICAL SERVICE 60.84 

00014221 08/04/2015 SINGLETON AUMAN PC 01-9500 AUDIT FEES 2,500.00 

00014222 08/04/2015 TRI COUNTY SCHOOLS            INSURANCE GROUP 01-9535 AUG 15 HEALTH INSURANCE 2,506.00 

76-9576 AUG 15 HEALTH INSURANCE 13,710.10 16,216.10 

00014223 08/04/2015 TRI COUNTY SCHOOLS            INSURANCE GROUP 01-9535 JULY 15 HEALTH INSURANCE 2,506.00 

76-9576 JULY 15 HEALTH INSURANCE 13,710.10 16,216.10 

00014224 08/04/2015 ALLEN WRIGHT 01-5200 PER DIEM 43.13 

Total Number of Checks 11 44,303.13 

Fund Summary

Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount

01 County School Service Fund 11 16,882.93 

76 Payroll Clearing 2 27,420.20 

Net (Check Amount)

Less Unpaid Sales Tax Liability

Total Number of Checks 11 44,303.13 

.00 

44,303.13 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 1 of 1

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Sep  2 2015  8:07AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education











Sierra County Office of Education 
2014-2015 Unaudited Actuals 
Presented September 8, 2015 

 
 
General Fund Form 01 & Fund 16: 
 
Ending Fund Balance (SACS Fund 01, page 2, F.2) 
 

Net increase in operating fund balance is $250,211 and an increase of $57,613 due to audit 
adjustment/restatement for a total fund balance increase of $307,824. 

Beginning Funding Balance 7/01/2014:   $2,004,299 
Net increase in Fund Balance:  $   250,211 
Audit Adj./Restatement:   $     57,613 
Ending Fund Balance:       6/30/2015:   $2,312,123  
 
 Components of Ending Fund Balance 2014-2015 

1) Revolving Cash:  $          500 
2) Prepaid Expenditures $       5,911 
3) Restricted:   $     52,952 
4) Other Commitments  $     88,585  
5) Res Econ. Uncertainties: $   156,911 
6) Unassigned:  $2,007,264 

 
REVENUE 
 
Local Control Funding Formula 
2015-2016 is the end of the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) second year of implementation.  LCFF 
provides the funding mechanism that is simple and transparent while allowing local educational agencies (LEAs) 
maximum flexibility in allocating resources to meet local needs. The LCFF changed the way counties are funded 
by providing all county offices with 1) base amount of $661,000;  2) $110,000 per school district;  and 3) $70 per 
District and County P2 ADA and then eliminating most state categorical programs.   

 

 

$945,406
43.5%

$565,592
23.4%

$486,029
22.4%

$179,216   8.3%

$53,084
2.4%

Total Revenue  $2,172,920

LCFF

Federal

Other State

Local

Interfund Transfer



scoe_unaudited_actuals 2014_2015_narrative, 8/26/2015 3:28 PM 

 
The chart below compares revenue for 2011-2012, 2012-2013, 2013-2014 actuals, 2014-2015 unaudited actuals, 
and 2015-2016 budget.   
 

Description 2011-2012  
Actuals 

2012-2013  
Actuals 

2013-2014 
Actuals 

2014-2015 
Unaudited 

Actuals 

2015-2016  
Budget 

LCFF Sources $   405,055 $   487,590 $  676,265 $945,406 $871,975 
Federal 635,847 559,883 565,128 509,185 472,109 
Other State 471,857 517,574 502,505 486,029 606,626 
Local 244,023 283,919 229,394 179,216 176,545 
T/I Forest Res 160,830 63,176 56,916 53,084 47,709 
Total $1,917,612 $1,912,141 $2,030,209 $2,172,920 $2,174,964 

 
 
Expenditures 
 

 
 
The chart below compares expenditures for 2011-2012, 2012-2013, 2013-2014 actuals, 2014-2015 unaudited 
actuals, and 2015-2016 budget.   
  

Description 2011-2012  
Actuals 

2012-2013  
Actuals 

2013-2014 
Actuals 

2014-2015 
Unaudited  

Actuals 

2015-2016  
Budget 

Certificated $   315,492 $   293,902 $   336,899 $332,452 $335,257 
Classified 323,108 336,222 342,356 313,381 333,118 
Benefits 325,198 307,122 294,194 285,518 305,190 
Books & Supplies 18,131 21,440 18,078 59,472 29,565 
Services & Operating 272,146 223,457 328,218 399,780 518,252 
Capital Outlay 28,941 0 39,431 13,089 43,132 
Other Outgo 778,088 681,404 627,449 519,317 360,167 
Total $2,061,104 $1,863,547 $1,986,625 $1,923,009  $1,924,681 

 
Other  
 

 Forest Reserve Fund 16  
o County’s Share of Revenue……..$  53,084 
o Transfer to District………………..$300,809 

 

$332,452
17.3%

$313,381
16.3%

$285,518
14.8%$59,472

3.1%

$399,780
20.8%

$13,089
.7%

$519,317
27%

Total Expenditures  $1,923,009

Certificated Salary

Classified Salary

Employee Benefits

Books & Supplies

Operating

Capital Outlay

Other Outgo



scoe_unaudited_actuals 2014_2015_narrative, 8/26/2015 3:28 PM 

 Debt 
o Net OPEB obligation:     $88,585 
o Compensated Absences Payable:    $13,650 
o Net Pension Cost:   $61,436 

 
 Indirect Cost Preliminary Rate:  

o Fiscal Year 2014-2015…………….  8.88%  
o Fiscal Year 2015-2016…………….18.56% 

 
 
SELPA 
 
Unduplicated pupil count:  

2010-2011: 50 
2011-2012: 44 
2012-2013: 39 
2013-2014: 42 
2014-2015: 38 
 

Total Federal, State and Local Funds……………$617,952 
Federal Expenditures………………………………$148,205 
State and Local Expenditures……………………..$469,747 
Local only……………………………………………$  45,089 
 
Maintenance of Effort 
State and Local Expenditures per capita 
    
 2013-2014…………$12,042  

2014-2015………....$12,362 MOE Met 
 

























































































































1 

 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Administrative Regulation 

Grades/Evaluation Of Student Achievement 
 AR 5121(a) 

 

GRADES/EVALUATION OF STUDENT ACHIEVEMENT 

 

 

Note: Education Code 49067 mandates the Governing Board to approve regulations requiring the evaluation of each 

student's achievement for each grading period. The following administrative regulation should be revised to reflect district 

practice and the grade levels offered by the district. 

 

Written report cards displaying students' grades in each subject or course shall be distributed to 

parents/guardians at the end of each grading period. Parents/guardians shall be offered an opportunity to 

meet with their child's teacher(s) to discuss the grades and strategies to improve their child's performance. 

 
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 

 

Note: Education Code 49067 mandates that the Board approve regulations requiring either a conference with the 

parent/guardian or a written report sent to the parent/guardian whenever a student is in danger of failing a course. Pursuant 

to Education Code 49067, the refusal of a parent/guardian to attend the conference or to respond to the written report shall 

not preclude failing the student at the end of the grading period. 

 

Whenever it becomes evident to a teacher that a student is in danger of failing a course, the teacher shall 

arrange a conference with the student's parent/guardian or send the parent/guardian a written report. 

(Education Code 49067) 

 
(cf. 5123 - Promotion/Acceleration/Retention) 

 

Note: The following optional paragraph is for use by districts that maintain high schools. 

 

For each student in grades 9-12, the Superintendent or designee shall maintain a transcript recording the 

courses taken, the term that each course was taken, credits earned, final grades, and date of graduation. 

 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 

(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 

 

Grades for Achievement 

 

Note: The following optional section may be revised to reflect district practice, including plus/minus signs if appropriate. 

 

For grades K-3, students' level of progress shall be reported as follows: 

 

N Needs Improvement 

S Satisfactory Progress 

E Excellent 

 

For grades 4-12, grades for achievement shall be reported for each grading period as follows: 

 



2 

 

A (90-100%) Outstanding Achievement 4.0 grade points 

B (80-89%) Above Average Achievement 3.0 grade points 

C (70-79%) Average Achievement 2.0 grade points 

D (60-69%) Below Average Achievement 1.0 grade points 

F (0-59%) Little or No Achievement 0 grade points 

I  Incomplete 0 grade points 

 

An Incomplete shall be given only when a student's work is not finished because of illness or other excused 

absence.  If not made up within six weeks, the Incomplete shall become an F. 

 

Note: The following optional paragraph is for use by districts that maintain high schools and choose to assign extra grade 

weighting to Advanced Placement, International Baccalaureate, honors, or concurrent postsecondary courses. 

 

Districts should be aware that, in determining college admissions eligibility, the extra grade weighting will be factored into 

university admissions only if the courses have been certified as honors courses by the University of California and are in 

the following "a-g" subjects: history-social science, English, advanced mathematics, laboratory science, language other 

than English, and visual and performing arts. 

 

Because of the more rigorous nature of Advanced Placement, International Baccalaureate, honors, and 

concurrent postsecondary courses, students receiving a grade of A, B, or C in those courses shall receive 

extra grade weighting as follows: 

 

A = 5 points 

B = 4 points 

C = 3 points 

D = 1 points 

F = 0 

 
(cf. 6141.5 - Advanced Placement) 

(cf. 6172 - Gifted and Talented Student Program) 

(cf. 6172.1 - Concurrent Enrollment in College Classes) 

 

Grades for Physical Education 

 

No grade of a student participating in a physical education class may be adversely affected due to the fact 

that the student, because of circumstances beyond his/her control, does not wear standardized physical 

education apparel. (Education Code 49066) 
 

(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity) 

 

Note: The following optional paragraph is for use by districts that maintain high schools and may be revised to reflect 

additional grade levels at the district's discretion. 5 CCR 10060 lists criteria by which districts must appraise the quality of 

high school physical education programs, including criteria for reporting student achievement in physical education. 

 

 

Student performance in high school physical education courses shall be based upon evaluation of the 

student's individual progress, attainment of goals in each instructional area, tests designed to determine 

skill and knowledge, and physical performance tests. (5 CCR 10060) 

 

Students in grades 7-12 must have earned at least a 2.0 GPA the previous grading period in all core subjects 

in order to participate in extracurricular activities.  Students who receive an F in any class are ineligible 

to participate in extracurricular activities.  



3 

 

 

Teachers are encouraged to allow for trends in the quality of student work.  When a student finishes a 

grading period doing high quality work which requires skills acquired throughout the grading period, low 

grades at the beginning of the grading period need not diminish the appropriate evaluation of the student’s 

achievement.  Similarly, grades at the beginning need not compensate for a downward trend in 

achievement. 

 

Grades for College Courses 

 

When the district has approved a student to receive district credit for coursework completed at a 

community college or four-year college, he/she shall receive the same letter grade as is granted by the 

college. 

 

Grades for Citizenship, Study Skills, and Effort 

 

1.  Grades for citizenship and effort shall be reported each marking period as follows: 

 

E   Excellent       

S   Satisfactory 

N  Needs Improvement 

 

2.  Criteria for determining grades for citizenship shall include, but is not limited to: 

 

a.   Student obeys rules. 

 

b.   Student respects public and personal property. 

 

c.   Student maintains courteous, cooperative relations with staff and fellow students. 

 

d.   Student works without disturbing others. 

 

3.  Criteria for determining grades for effort shall include but not limited to: 

 

a.  Student takes responsibility for having necessary tools and materials. 

 

b.  Student shows interest and initiative. 

 

c.  Student goes to work immediately and completes assignments. 

 

d.  Student uses free time resourcefully. 

 

Pass/Fail Grading 

 

The Superintendent or designee has identified the following courses or programs for which students may, 

with parent/guardian permission, elect to earn a Pass or Fail grade instead of a letter grade. 

 

1. All courses taken in Alternative Ed programs 

2. All courses taken in the Special Ed program 

 



4 

 

Students who receive a Pass grade shall acquire the appropriate semester units of credit for the course. 

The grade shall not be counted in determining class rank, honors list, or membership in the California 

Scholarship Federation. Students who receive a Fail grade shall not receive credit for taking the course. 

 

Honor Roll 

 

Each school shall post an Honor Roll.  All courses except Pass/Fail shall be counted in computing 

eligibility for the Honor Roll.  To qualify for the Blue Honor Roll, a student must earn a grade point 

average (GPA) of 3.0 or better.  Gold students must have a 3.5 GPA and no grades below a C. 

 

Peer Grading 

 

Note: In Owasso Independent School District v. Falvo, the U.S. Supreme Court held that students' grades on assignments 

and tests are not "education records" until the teacher records them, and therefore the practice of peer grading does not 

violate the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974 (FERPA) (20 USC 1232g); see BP/AR 5125 - Student 

Records. Furthermore, for the same reason, the Supreme Court did not prohibit the practice of having students report the 

grades aloud so that the teacher may record them. The following section is optional. 

 

At their discretion, teachers may use peer grading of student tests, papers, and assignments as appropriate 

to reinforce lessons. 

 

Repeating Classes 

 

With the approval of the principal or designee, a student may repeat a course in order to raise his/her 

grade. Both grades received shall be entered on the student's transcript, but the student shall receive credit 

only once for taking the course. The highest grade received shall be used in determining the student's 

overall grade point average (GPA). 

 

Withdrawal from Classes 

 

A student who drops a course during the first four weeks of the grading period may do so without any 

entry on his/her permanent record card. A student who drops a course after the first four weeks of the 

grading period shall receive an F grade on his/her permanent record, unless otherwise decided by the 

principal or designee because of extenuating circumstances. 

 

Effect of Absences on Grades 

 
Note: Education Code 49067 mandates districts that authorize teachers to assign failing grades to students who have 

excessive unexcused absences (see the accompanying Board policy) to establish regulations which include, but are not 

limited to, providing (1) a reasonable opportunity for the student or parent/guardian to explain the absences and (2) a method 

for identifying in the student's record the failing grades assigned on the basis of unexcused absences. 

 

Teachers who may choose to withhold class credit because of excessive unexcused absences defined per 

Education Code Sections 46010 and 48205 shall so inform students and parents/guardians of such a 

possibility at the beginning of the school year or semester. When a student reaches the number of 

unexcused absences defined as excessive in Board policy, the student and parent/guardian shall again be 

notified of the district's policy regarding excessive unexcused absences. 

 
(cf. 5113 - Absences and Excuses) 

 



5 

 

The student and parent/guardian shall have a reasonable opportunity to explain the absences. (Education 

Code 49067) 

 

If a student receives a failing grade because of excessive unexcused absences, the student's record shall 

specify that the grade was assigned because of excessive unexcused absences. (Education Code 49067) 

 
Note: Pursuant to Education Code 49069.5, grades for a student in foster care shall not be lowered if the student is absent 

from school due to (1) a decision by a court or placement agency to change the student's placement, in which case the 

student's grades and credits shall be calculated as of the date the student left school, or (2) a verified court appearance or 

related court-ordered activity. See BP 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth. 

 

Grades for a student in foster care shall not be lowered if the student is absent for any reason specified in 

Education Code 49069.5. 

 
(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 

 

Grade Point Average 

 
Note: The following optional section should be revised to reflect the district's methodology for calculating GPA. Districts 

may calculate multiple GPAs for a single student (e.g., academic GPA, total GPA) for different purposes (e.g., eligibility 

for extracurricular activities, athletic programs, honors at graduation, or other district programs that use GPA as a criterion). 

Districts should be aware that, in determining college admissions eligibility, the California State University and the 

University of California consider students' GPA in the "a-g" subjects required for college entry and is based on grades 

recorded in their high school transcripts. 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall calculate each student's GPA using the grade point assigned to each 

letter grade in accordance with the scale described in the section "Grades for Achievement" above. The 

grade points for all applicable coursework shall be totaled and divided by the number of courses 

completed. Pass/Fail grades shall not be included in the determination of a student's GPA. 

 
(cf. 5126 - Awards for Achievement) 

(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities) 

 

When plus and minus designations are added to letter grades, they shall not be considered in determining 

GPA. 

 
Note:  As amended by AB 2160 (Ch. 679, Statutes of 2014), Education Code 69432.9 provides that all students in grade 12 

will be considered Cal Grant applicants unless they opt out of the program. The GPA of all students in grade 12 who have 

not opted out of the program shall be submitted to the Student Aid Commission. See AR 5125 - Student Records for related 

requirements. 

 

Each academic year, the Superintendent or designee shall provide to the Student Aid Commission the 

GPA of all district students in grade 12, except for students who have opted out or are permitted by the 

rules of the Student Aid Commission to provide test scores in lieu of the GPA. (Education Code 69432.9) 

 

 SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Regulation SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

approved:  April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California 

revised:   August 9, 2011 

revised:  September 8, 2015 Loyalton, California 

 

 



Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Board Policy 
Bullying 
Students 
 
 
 BP 5131.2 
 
BULLYING 
 
The Governing Board recognizes the harmful effects of bullying on student learning and school 
attendance and desires to provide safe school environments that protect students from physical and 
emotional harm.  District employees shall establish student safety as a high priority and shall not tolerate 
bullying of any student. 
 
No individual or group shall, through physical, written, verbal, or other means, harass, sexually harass, 
threaten, intimidate, retaliate, cyberbully, cause bodily injury to, or commit hate violence against any 
student or school personnel. 
 
(cf. 5131 - Conduct) 
(cf. 5136 - Gangs) 
(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 
(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 
(cf. 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior) 
 
Cyberbullying includes the creation or transmission of harassing communications, direct threats, or other 
harmful texts, sounds, or images on the Internet, social media, or other technologies using a telephone, 
computer, or any wireless communication device.  Cyberbullying also includes breaking into another 
person's electronic account and assuming that person's identity in order to damage that person's 
reputation. 
 
(cf. 5145.2 - Freedom of Speech/Expression) 
 
Strategies for addressing bullying in district schools shall be developed with involvement of key 
stakeholders, including students, parents/guardians, and staff, and may be incorporated into the 
comprehensive safety plan, the local control and accountability plan, and other applicable district and 
school plans. 
 
(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils) 
(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan) 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 
(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 
(cf. 1400 - Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies and the Schools) 
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 
 
As appropriate, the Superintendent or designee may collaborate with law enforcement, courts, social 
services, mental health services, other agencies, and community organizations in the development and 
implementation of joint strategies to promote safety in schools and the community and to provide 
services for alleged victims and perpetrators of bullying. 
 
(cf. 1020 - Youth Services) 



2 
 

 

 
Bullying Prevention 
 
To the extent possible, district schools shall focus on the prevention of bullying by establishing clear 
rules for student conduct and implementing strategies to promote a  
 
positive, collaborative school climate. Students shall be informed, through student handbooks and other 
appropriate means, of district and school rules related to bullying, mechanisms available for reporting 
incidents or threats, and the consequences for engaging in bullying. 
 
(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate) 
 
As appropriate, the district shall provide students with instruction, in the classroom or other educational 
settings, that promotes effective communication and conflict resolution skills, social skills, 
character/values education, respect for cultural and individual differences, self-esteem development, 
assertiveness skills, and appropriate online behavior. 
 
(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education) 
(cf. 6142.94 - History-Social Science Instruction) 
(cf. 6163.4 - Student Use of Technology) 
 
Staff shall receive related professional development, including information about early warning signs of 
harassing/intimidating behaviors and effective response. 
 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 
 
Based on an assessment of bullying incidents at school, the Superintendent or designee may increase 
supervision and security in areas where bullying most often occurs, such as classrooms, playgrounds, 
hallways, restrooms, and cafeterias. 
 
Intervention 
 
Students are encouraged to notify school staff when they are being bullied or suspect that another student 
is being victimized. In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall develop means for students to report 
threats or incidents confidentially and anonymously. 
 
School staff who witness an act of bullying shall immediately intervene to stop the incident when it is 
safe to do so.  (Education Code 234.1) 
 
When appropriate based on the severity or pervasiveness of the bullying, the Superintendent or designee 
shall notify the parents/guardians of victims and perpetrators and may contact law enforcement. 
 
The Superintendent, principal, or principal's designee may refer a victim, witness, perpetrator, or other 
student affected by an act of bullying to a school counselor, school psychologist, social worker, child 
welfare attendance personnel, school nurse, or other school support service personnel for case 
management, counseling, and/or participation in a restorative justice program as appropriate. (Education 
Code 48900.9) 
 



3 
 

 

(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services) 
 
Reporting and Filing of Complaints and Investigation 
 
Any complaint of bullying, whether it is discriminatory or nondiscriminatory, shall be investigated and 
resolved in accordance with law and the district's uniform complaint procedures specified in AR 1312.3 
- Uniform Complaint Procedures. 
 
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 
 
Any student, parent/guardian, or other individual who believes that a student has been subjected to 
bullying or who has witnessed bullying may report the incident to a teacher, the principal, a compliance 
officer, or any other available school employee.  Within one business day of receiving such a report, a 
staff member shall notify the principal of the report, whether or not a uniform complaint is filed. Within 
two business days of receiving a report of bullying, the principal shall notify a district compliance officer 
identified in AR 1312.3.  In addition, any school employee who observes an incident of bullying 
involving a student shall, within one business day, report his/her observation to the principal or a district 
compliance officer, whether or not the alleged victim files a complaint. 
 
Within two business days of receiving a report of bullying, the principal shall notify the district 
compliance officer identified in AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures.  
 
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 
 
When the circumstances involve cyberbullying, individuals with information about the activity shall be 
encouraged to save and print any electronic or digital messages that they feel constitute cyberbullying 
and to notify a teacher, the principal, or other employee so that the matter may be investigated.  When a 
student uses a social networking site or service to bully or harass another student, the Superintendent or 
designee may file a request with the networking site or service to suspend the privileges of the student 
and to have the material removed. 
 
When a report of bullying is submitted, the principal or a district compliance officer shall inform the 
student or parent/guardian of the right to file a formal written complaint in accordance with AR 1312.3.  
The student who is the alleged victim of the bullying shall be given an opportunity to describe the 
incident, identify witnesses who may have relevant information, and provide other evidence of bullying. 
 
Investigation and Resolution of Complaints 
 

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 234.1, districts are required to adopt a process for receiving and investigating 
complaints involving unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, and bullying) based on 
race or ethnicity, nationality, gender, sex, sexual orientation, religion, or any other characteristic contained in the 
definition of hate crimes in Penal Code 422.55.  Pursuant to 5 CCR 4600-4633, the UCP must be used for this purpose. 
In addition, federal regulations require districts to adopt procedures providing for prompt and equitable resolution of 
complaints of unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, and bullying) on the basis of sex 
(34 CFR 106.8), disability (34 CFR 104.7 and 28 CFR 35.107), and age (34 CFR 110.25). 
 
Although some bullying incidents may not fall within the provisions of Education Code 234.1 or federal civil rights 
regulations, CSBA strongly recommends that districts use the UCP to investigate all bullying incidents (whether 
discriminatory or nondiscriminatory) to ensure consistent implementation by district staff. It is not always easy or possible 
for staff to know prior to an investigation whether a student was bullied because of his/her actual or perceived membership 
in a legally protected class. Those bullying incidents found to involve discrimination based on the results of the 



4 
 

 

investigation would then be resolved using the UCP. When a bullying incident is determined to be nondiscriminatory, it 
should be resolved through the appropriate disciplinary process. Districts that are concerned about the capacity of a single 
district compliance officer to handle a possible increase in the number of UCP complaints, or that prefer to handle certain 
incidents at the school site level whenever possible, may designate multiple compliance officers in accordance with AR 
1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures. 

 
Any complaint of bullying shall be investigated and, if determined to be discriminatory, resolved in 
accordance with law and the district's uniform complaint procedures specified in AR 1312.3. 
 
If, during the investigation, it is determined that a complaint is about nondiscriminatory bullying, the 
principal or designee shall inform the complainant and shall take all necessary actions to resolve the 
complaint.  
 
Discipline 
 
Corrective actions for a student who commits an act of bullying of any type may include counseling, 
behavioral intervention and education, and, if the behavior is severe or pervasive as defined in Education 
Code 48900, may include suspension or expulsion in accordance with district policies and regulations. 
 
(cf. 5138 - Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation) 
(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 
(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 
 
(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities)) 
(cf. 6159.4 - Behavioral Interventions for Special Education Students) 
 
Any employee who permits or engages in bullying or retaliation related to bullying shall be subject to 
disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal. 
 
(cf. 4117.34118 - Dismissal) 
(cf. 4118 - /Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 
(cf. 4119.21/4219.21/4319.21 - Professional Standards) 
(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination 
32282  Comprehensive safety plan 
32283.5  Bullying; online training 
35181  Governing board policy on responsibilities of students 
35291-35291.5  Rules 
48900-48925  Suspension or expulsion 
48985  Translation of notices 
52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan 
PENAL CODE 
422.55  Definition of hate crime 
647  Use of camera or other instrument to invade person's privacy; misdemeanor 
647.7  Use of camera or other instrument to invade person's privacy; punishment 
653.2  Electronic communication devices, threats to safety 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
4600-4687  Uniform complaint procedures 



5 
 

 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 47 
254  Universal service discounts (e-rate) 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 
35.107  Nondiscrimination on basis of disability; complaints 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 
104.7  Designation of responsible employee for Section 504 
106.8  Designation of responsible employee for Title IX 
110.25  Notification of nondiscrimination on the basis of age 
COURT DECISIONS 
Wynar v. Douglas County School District, (2013) 728 F.3d 1062 
J.C. v. Beverly Hills Unified School District, (2010) 711 F.Supp.2d 1094 
Lavine v. Blaine School District, (2002) 279 F.3d 719 
 

Management Resources: 
CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Final Guidance: AB 1266, Transgender and Gender Nonconforming Students, Privacy, Programs, Activities & 
Facilities, Legal Guidance, March 2014 

Providing a Safe, Nondiscriminatory School Environment for Transgender and Gender-Nonconforming Students, Policy 
Brief, February 2014 

Addressing2014Addressing the Conditions of Children: Focus on Bullying, Governance Brief, December 2012 
Safe Schools: Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success, 2011 
Building Healthy Communities: A School Leaders Guide to Collaboration and Community Engagement, 2009 
Cyberbullying: Policy Considerations for Boards, Policy Brief, July 2007 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Health Education Content Standards for California Public Schools: Kindergarten Through Grade Twelve, 2008 
Bullying at School, 2003 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 
Dear Colleague Letter: Bullying of Students with Disabilities, August 2013 
Dear Colleague Letter:  Harassment and Bullying, October 2010 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org 
California Department of Education, Safe Schools Office: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ss 
Common Sense Media: http://www.commonsensemedia.org 
National School Safety Center: http://www.schoolsafety.us 
ON[the]LINE, digital citizenship resources:  http://www.onthelineca.org 
U.S. Department of Education:  http://www.ed.gov 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Regulation SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
approved:  June 12, 2012 Loyalton, California 
revised:     June 19, 2013 
revised:     December 9, 2014 
revised:     September 8, 2015 
 
 



Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Board Policy 

 

BP 6163.4  

Instruction BP 6163.4(a) 

 

STUDENT USE OF TECHNOLOGY 

 

 

The Governing Board of Education intends that technological resources provided by the district be used in a 

safe and responsible and proper manner in support of the instructional program and for the advancement of 

student learning. All students using these resources shall receive instruction in their proper and appropriate use. 

 
(cf. 0440 - District Technology Plan) 
(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites) 
(cf. 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media) 

(cf. 4040 - Employee Use of Technology) 
(cf. 6163.1 - Library Media Centers) 

 

Teachers, administrators, and/or library media specialists are expected to review the technological resources and 

online sites that will be used in the classroom or assigned to students in order to ensure that they are appropriate 

for the intended purpose and the age of the students. 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall notify students and parents/guardians about authorized uses of district 

computers technology, user obligations and responsibilities, as well as and consequences for unauthorized use 

and/or unlawful activities in accordance with this Board policy and the district's Student Network Responsibility 

Contract. 

 

District technology includes, but is not limited to, computers, the district's computer network including servers 

and wireless computer networking technology (wi-fi), the Internet, email, USB drives, wireless access points 

(routers), tablet computers, smartphones and smart devices, telephones, cellular telephones, personal digital 

assistants, pagers, MP3 players, wearable technology, any wireless communication device including emergency 

radios, and/or future technological innovations, whether accessed on or off site or through district-owned or 

personally owned equipment or devices. 
 

Before a student is authorized to use district technology, the student and his/her parent/guardian shall sign and 

return the Student Network Responsibility Contract. In that agreement, the parent/guardian shall agree not to 

hold the district or any district staff responsible for the failure of any technology protection measures or user 

mistakes or negligence and shall agree to indemnify and hold harmless the district and district staff for any 

damages or costs incurred. 

 
(cf. 6162.6 - Use of Copyrighted Materials) 

 

The district reserves the right to monitor student use of technology within the jurisdiction of the district without 

advance notice or consent. Students shall be informed that their use of district technology, including, but not 

limited to, computer files, email, text messages, instant messaging, and other electronic communications, is not 

private and may be accessed by the district for the purpose of ensuring proper use. Students have no reasonable 

expectation of privacy in use of the district technology. Students' personally owned devices shall not be searched 

except in cases where there is a reasonable suspicion, based on specific and objective facts, that the search will 

uncover evidence of a violation of law, district policy, or school rules. 
 

(cf. 5145.12 - Search and Seizure) 



2 

 
 

The Superintendent or designee may gather and maintain information pertaining directly to school safety or 

student safety from the social media activity of any district student in accordance with Education Code 49073.6 

and BP/AR 5125 - Student Records.  
 

(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 
 

Whenever a student is found to have violated Board policy or the district's Student Network Responsibility 

Contract, the principal or designee may cancel or limit a student's user privileges or increase supervision of the 

student's use of the district's equipment and other technological resources, as appropriate. Inappropriate use also 

may result in disciplinary action and/or legal action in accordance with law and Board policy. 
 

(cf. 5125.2 - Withholding Grades, Diploma or Transcripts) 
(cf. 5144 - Discipline) 
(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process) 

(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process:  (Students with Disabilities))) 

 

The Superintendent or designee, with input from students and appropriate staff, shall regularly review and 

update procedures to enhance the safety and security of students using district technology and to help ensure 

that the district adapts to changing technologies and circumstances. 

 

(cf. 5145.12 - Search and Seizure) 

 

On-Line Services/Internet AccessSafety 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all district computers with Internet access have a technology 

protection measure that blocks or filters Internetprotects against access to visual depictions that are obscene, 

child pornography, or harmful to minors, and that the operation of such measures is enforced.  (20 USC 6777,; 

47 USC 254; 47 CFR 54.520) 
 

To reinforce these measures, the Superintendent or designee shall implement rules and procedures designed to 

restrict students' access to harmful or inappropriate matter on the Internet. He/she also shall establish regulations 

to address the safety and security of students and student information when using electronic mail, chat rooms, 

and other forms of direct electronic communication and to ensure that students do not engage in unauthorized 

or unlawful online activities. 
 

Staff shall supervise students while they are using on-line services and may ask teacher aides and student aides 

to assist in this supervision. 
 

Before using the district's on-line resources, each student and his/her parent/guardian shall sign and return an 

Acceptable Use Agreement specifying user obligations and responsibilities. In that agreement, the student and 

his/her parent/guardian shall agree to not hold the district or any district staff responsible for the failure of any 

technology protection measures, violations of copyright restrictions, or users' mistakes or negligence.  They 

shall also agree to indemnify and hold harmless the district and district personnel for any damages or costs 

incurred. 

 
(cf. 6162.6 - Use of Copyrighted Materials) 

 

Harmful matter includes matter, taken as a whole, which to changing technologies and circumstances, the the 

average person, applying contemporary statewide standards, appeals to the prurient interest and is matter which 

depicts or describes, in a patently offensive way, sexual conduct and which lacks serious literary, artistic, 

political, or scientific value for minors.  (Penal Code 313) 

 



3 

 

The district's Student Network Responsibility Contract shall establish expectations for appropriate student 

conduct when using the Internet or other forms of electronic communication, including, but not limited to, 

prohibitions against: 

 

1. Accessing, posting, submitting, publishing, or displaying harmful or inappropriate matter that is 

threatening, obscene, disruptive, or sexually explicit, or that could be construed as harassment or 

disparagement of others based on their race/ethnicity, national origin, sex, gender, sexual orientation, 

age, disability, religion, or political beliefs 

 
(cf. 5131 - Conduct) 

(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying) 

(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 

(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 

(cf. 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior) 

  

2. Intentionally uploading, downloading, or creating computer viruses and/or maliciously attempting to 

harm or destroy district equipment or materials or manipulate the data of any other user, including so-

called "hacking" 

 
Note: Penal Code 653.2 makes it a crime for a person to distribute another person's personal identification information 

electronically with the intent to cause harassment by a third party or to threaten a person's safety or that of his/her family (e.g., 

placing a person's picture or address online so that he/she receives harassing messages). 

 

3. Distributing personal identification information, including the name, address, telephone number, Social 

Security number, or other personally identifiable information, of another student, staff member, or other 

person with the intent to threaten, intimidate, harass, or ridicule that person 

 

The Superintendent or designee shall regularly review this policy, the accompanying administrative regulation, 

and other relevant procedures.  He/she shall also monitor the district's filtering software to help ensure its 

effectivenessprovide age-appropriate instruction regarding safe and appropriate behavior on social networking 

sites, chat rooms, and other Internet services.  Such instruction shall include, but not be limited to, the dangers 

of posting one's own personal identification information online, misrepresentation by online predators, how to 

report inappropriate or offensive content or threats, behaviors that constitute cyberbullying, and how to respond 

when subjected to cyberbullying. 

 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
49073.6  Student records; social media 

51006  Computer education and resources 

51007  Programs to strengthen technological skills 

51870-51874  Education technology 
60044  Prohibited instructional materials 

PENAL CODE 
313  Harmful matter 
502  Computer crimes, remedies 
632  Eavesdropping on or recording confidential communications 
653.2  Electronic communication devices, threats to safety 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 15 

6501-6506  Children's Online Privacy Protection Act 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
6751-6777  Enhancing Education Through Technology Act, Title II, Part D, especially: 

6777  Internet safety 

UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 47 
254  Universal service discounts (E-rate) 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 16 
312.1-312.12  Children's Online Privacy Protection Act 



4 

 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 47 
54.520  Internet safety policy and technology protection measures, E-rate discounts 

COURT DECISIONS 

New Jersey v. T.L.O., (1985) 469 U.S. 325 

 
Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 

Cyberbullying:  Policy Considerations for Boards, Policy Brief, July 2007 

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION PUBLICATIONS 

How to Protect Kids' Privacy Online:  A Guide for Teachers, December 2000 

WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
American Library Association:  http://www.ala.org 

California Coalition for Children's Internet Safety: http://www.cdecybersafety.ca.gov 
Center for Safe and Responsible Internet Use: http://csriu.org 

Federal Communications Commission: http://www.fcc.gov 
Federal Trade Commission, Children's Online Privacy Protection: 

http://www.ftc.gov/privacy/privacyinitiatives/childrens.html 

U.S. Department of Education: http://www.ed.gov 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Policy   

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

adopted:  April 10, 2007   Sierraville, California 

revised:    September 8, 2015 Loyalton, California 



1 

 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Board Bylaw 

 

Instruction  

 BB 9100(a) 

 

ORGANIZATION 

 

 

Annual Organizational Meeting 

 

The Board of Education shall hold an annual organizational meeting within the time limits 

prescribed by law. (Education Code 35143) 

 

Each year, the Governing Board shall hold an annual organizational meeting. In any year in which 

a regular election of district Board members is conducted, the organizational meeting shall be held 

within a 15-day period beginning from the date upon which a Board member elected at that election 

takes office. During non-election years, the meeting shall be held within the same 15-day period 

on the calendar.  (Education Code 35143) 

 

The day and time of the annual meeting shall be selected by the Board at its regular meeting held 

immediately prior to the first day of the 15-day period. On behalf of the Board, the Superintendent 

shall notify the County Superintendent of Schools of the day and time selected.  Within 15 days 

prior to the date of the annual meeting, the clerk of the Board, with the assistance of the 

Superintendent, shall notify in writing all Board members and members-elect of the date and time 

selected for the meeting.  (Education Code 35143) 

 

At this meeting the Board shall: 

 

1. Elect a president and a clerk and/or vice president from its members 

 

2. Appoint athe Superintendent as secretary to the Board 
 

3. Authorize signatures 

 

Note: Item #4.Develop below promotes the adoption of a Board calendar to ensure the scheduling of important 

governance matters such as evaluation of the Superintendent, Board self-evaluation, budget meetings, goal setting, 

and policy and program reviews. 

 

4. Approve a schedule of regular meetings for the year and a Board governance calendar 

stating the time when the Board will address important governance matters 

 

5. Designate Board representatives to serve on committees or commissions of the district, 

other public agencies, or organizations with which the district partners or collaborates 

 
(cf. 9140 - Board Representatives) 



2 

 

 

Election of Officers 

 

 The Board shall each year elect its entire slate of officers. 

 

No Board member shall serve more than eight consecutive years in the same office. 

 
(cf. 9224 - Oath or Affirmation) 
 

The election of Board officers shall be conducted during an open session of the annual 

organizational meeting. 

 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 

5017  Term of Officeoffice 

35143  Annual organizational meeting  date, and notice 

35145  Public meetings 

GOVERNMENT CODE 

54953  Meetings to be open and public; attendance 

ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 

68 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 65 (1985) 

59 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 619, 621-622  (1976) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bylaw SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

adopted: April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California 

revised:  November 13, 2007 

revised:  September 8, 2015 Loyalton, California 


	SCOE_9_8_15_Agenda.pdf
	Sierra COE 2015-16 LCAP Approval Letter.pdf
	SCOE Aug2015 ObjSumm.pdf
	8-11-15_SCOE Minutes.pdf
	SCOE Aug2015 Checks.pdf
	Res 15-003 SCOE Gann.pdf
	SCOE_Narrative_Unaudited_Actuals 2014_2015.pdf
	SCOE_Unaudited Actuals_2014-15.pdf
	Policies_9_08_15.pdf

